
LICENSING COMMITTEE
AGENDA

Venue: Bainbridge Room, The Copeland Centre, Catherine Street, 
Whitehaven 

Date: Thursday, 24 September, 2015
Time: 10.00 am
Contact Officer: Clinton Boyce, Legal Services Manager Tel: 01946 598516

1. Apologies for Absence 

2. Declarations of Interests in Agenda Items: 

3. Minutes of the meetings held on 27 March and 7 September 2015 1 - 6

4. Appointment of Deputy Chair for the municipal year 2015/16 

5. Appointment of three Licensing Sub-Committee Chairs for the municipal 
year 2015/16 

6. Review of statement of licensing policy 2016 - 2021 7 - 278

7. The Deregulation Act 2015 - changes to the length of hackney carriage 
driver licences and private hire operators licences 

279 - 282

8. Date and Time of Next Meeting: 

The next meeting of the Licensing Committee will be held at 10.00am on 
Monday 23 November 2015 in the Solway Hall, Whitehaven Civic Hall.

Membership: Councillors Graham Roberts (Chair), John Bowman, Hugh Branney, 
Fred Gleaves, Ian Hill, Linda Jones-Bulman, Bob Kelly, Jean Lewthwaite, Charles Maudling, 
Christopher Reay, Peter Stephenson and Paul Whalley

Contacts: Direct Dial: 01946 598516
E-mail: clinton.boyce@copeland.gov.uk
Website: www.copeland.gov.uk

Public Document Pack





LICENSING COMMITTEE

MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON THE 27TH MARCH 2015

Present: Councillors P Tyson (Chairman); D Banks; M Docherty; F Gleaves;
R Heathcote; J Kane; R Salkeld; G Scurrah; P Stephenson and C 
Woodman.

Officer: Mr C Boyce, Legal Services Manager; Mrs L Coid, Health and Safety 
Inspector and Mrs J O’Reilly, Environmental Health Manager.

LC.17 Minutes of the meeting held on the 4th February 2015

The Minutes of the meeting held on the 4th February 2015 were signed 
by the Chairman as a correct record.

LC.18 Apologies for absence

Apologies for absence were received from Councillors A Faichney and 
P Whalley.

LC.19 Declarations of interests in agenda items

There were no declarations of interests in agenda items.

LC.20 Review of Statement of Licensing Policy 2015 - 2019

Further to Minute LC.16 (2014/2015) the Committee considered the 
responses which had been received to the statutory consultation on the 
proposed Statement of Licensing Policy 2015-2019 (‘the Policy’).  
Members were advised that 12 responses had been received the 
majority of which related to the proposed cumulative impact policy and 
late night restriction orders contained respectively at sections 6 and 7 
of the Policy.  

Superintendent Gary Slater, Sergeant John Farrer and P.C. Kenny 
McLeod attended on behalf of the Police to provide additional evidence 
requested by members at the meeting on the 4th February. Chris Pool, 
Jason Fisher and David Fletcher attended on behalf of the Business 
Against Crime Whitehaven Partnership (‘the Partnership’), the 
Partnership having previously been given permission to speak on the 
matter.

Members considered the representations relating to the statement 
generally first.  Members agreed with the proposals put forward by the 
Copeland Disability Forum, Moresby and Parton Parish Councils and 
the Council’s Environmental Health Department in respect on non-
cumulative impact policy matters.

Page 1

Agenda Item 3



Detailed consideration was then given to the responses received in 
respect of the proposed cumulative impact policy. The Police provided 
additional evidence to the Committee addressing various matters 
including the impact that the closure of Captain Sennys nightclub had 
had on the town centre by dispersing the disorder to Tangier Street, 
data relating to a comparison of crime and disorder rates between 
Whitehaven Town Centre and other parts of West Cumbria, the cost of 
alcohol statistics, surveys of commercial and residential premises and 
recent crime and community safety strategic assessments. The 
possibility of dispersal from Whitehaven to Workington was questioned 
and stated as unlikely. 

The Police took issue with some of the comments made in the 
representations received as part of the consultation particularly those 
received from the Partnership and questioned whether alternative 
proposals to reduce crime and disorder put forward by the Partnership 
would work.

Responses from the Department of Emergency Medicine at West 
Cumberland Hospital and the Cumbria Ambulance Service were 
emphasised by the Police in respect of the impact crime and disorder 
was having on those services. Superintendent Slater closed the 
Police’s representation by referring to the response from 
Brackenthwaite House and the reference to residents feeling ‘that they 
are living at the heart of a night time war zone’.

The response from Environmental Health in respect of noise, odour 
and litter in the Town Centre was noted.

The Committee noted the responses from Home Group, The Waverley 
Hotel and fifteen residents of Pears House as also being in support of 
the cumulative impact policy.

Members considered the Partnership’s submission and the comments 
made by Roc Bar, Shakers and the Paul Jones Tavern all being 
against the adoption of a cumulative impact policy. The Partnership 
emphasised that only a minority of people caused crime and disorder 
and that this minority was not being dealt with properly due to a 
breakdown in the relationship with the Police. The Partnership felt that 
the policy was a knee-jerk reaction to the statistics and that other 
options as listed by the Partnership should be considered and 
exhausted first.  They added that many of the statistics were licensees 
either calling the Police for assistance or them simply reporting crime 
and argued that it was unfair that these reports should now be used as 
part of the statistics to introduce a cumulative impact policy.

After consideration of the representations members felt that further 
consideration should be given to the options proposed by the 
Partnership and that steps should be taken to improve the relationship 
between the Partnership and the Police.  It was also noted that the new 

Page 2



Whitehaven Town Council may wish to comment on the proposed 
cumulative impact policy.

After consideration of the matter it was

RESOLVED that:

(a) the responses which had been received to the consultation on 
the draft statement of licensing policy be noted;

(b) that the draft statement of licensing policy be amended to 
respect the suggestions made by the Copeland Disability 
Forum, Moresby and Parton Parish Councils and Environmental 
Health (Copeland Borough Council) as detailed in paragraph 2.2 
of the report together with any necessary updating changes in 
consequence of the Anti-social Behaviour, Crime and Policing 
Act 2014;

(c) that the additional evidence submitted by the Police together 
with the 12 responses to the consultation be noted; and

(d) that the matter be deferred to the next meeting of the Licensing 
Committee so that consideration can be given to exploring the 
options put forward by the Partnership and to whether 
improvements can be made in partnership working between the 
Police, the Partnership and the Council.

The meeting closed at 12.45pm.

Chairman ………………………………….

Date approved ……………………………

Page 3



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 5



This page is intentionally left blank



LC 24 Sept 2015
Item 6  

Review of Statement of Licensing Policy 2016 – 2021

EXECUTIVE MEMBER: Councillors David Moore (Legal) and David Banks 
(Community Safety and Enforcement).

LEAD OFFICER: Clinton Boyce, Legal Services Manager.

REPORT AUTHOR: Clinton Boyce, Legal Services Manager.

Recommendations:

(a)    That the Cumbria Constabulary’s position withdrawing their request for the 
inclusion of a cumulative impact policy in the proposed Statement of Licensing Policy 
2016-2021 be noted;

(b)   That policies on cumulative impact and early morning restriction orders are not 
included in the proposed Statement of Licensing Policy 2016-2021;

(c)   That the proposed amendments set out in paragraphs 3.1.1, 3.1.2 and 3.1.3 of 
the report be agreed and that the draft Statement of Licensing Policy 2016-2021, as 
set out in Appendix D to the report and prepared under section 5 of the Licensing Act 
2003, be approved and recommended to Council for approval; and

(d)  That members consider how they wish to proceed with the matters raised by the 
Cumbria Constabulary and the Business Against Crime Whitehaven Partnership 
relating to crime and disorder and other problems in Whitehaven Town Centre.
 

 

1. INTRODUCTION

1.1 The Council, as licensing authority, has a duty under section 5 of the Licensing 
Act 2003 (‘the Act’) to determine and publish a policy in respect of the exercise 
of its licensing functions (‘the Policy’). The Policy will set out the general 
approach on how the Council will make licensing decisions. This Policy must be 
reviewed every five years. It can be reviewed at any time during that period.

1.2 Council on the 12th October 2010 approved the last Policy with it taking effect 
from the 7th January 2011. That policy expires on the 6th January 2016. A new 

Page 7

Agenda Item 6



Policy, the subject of this report, will run from the 7th January 2016 until the 6th 
January 2021 unless reviewed earlier.

1.3 The Licensing Committee started the process of preparing a new Policy on the 4th 
February 2015. The Committee on that date approved a draft policy for 
consultation. The consultation ran from the 4th February 2015 until the 20th 
March 2015.  

1.4 The draft Policy was different from previous policies in two respects. Firstly, 
there had been numerous changes to licensing law since 2011 and the policy was 
updated to reflect these changes. Secondly, the Cumbria Constabulary (‘the 
Police’) had requested that the Council adopt a cumulative impact policy for 
Whitehaven Town Centre. A cumulative impact policy (being a policy within the 
main Policy), if adopted, would make it harder for a premises licence to be 
granted in a cumulative impact area. It would create a presumption against a 
licence being granted unless exceptional circumstances existed. The Police 
stated that the current level of crime and disorder was untenable and that the 
adoption of a policy was essential to minimising such level.

1.5 Twelve responses to the consultation were received most relating to the possible 
adoption of a cumulative impact policy. 

1.6 To enable members to consider the matter fully the following documentation is 
attached:

Appendix 1 Responses to consultation;
Appendix 2 Additional evidence submitted by the Police;
Appendix 3 Sections 6 and 7 of the draft policy relating to cumulative impact 

and early morning restriction orders.

1.7 The Licensing Committee on the 27th March 2015 considered the representations 
in detail. The Minutes of that meeting are at agenda item 3 for approval. The 
Committee, faced with an impending election, took the view that further 
consideration of the cumulative impact policy should wait until after the election 
and once a new Licensing Committee was established. That Committee could 
then consider the matter further and decide whether it should look at 
alternatives to the adoption of a cumulative impact policy.

2. RESPONSES TO CONSULTATION

2.1 Twelve responses (set out in Appendix 1) to the consultation were received from 
the following people: 

 Roc Bar (two letters dated 23rd February 2015);

Page 8



 The Copeland Disability Forum (email dated 25th February 2015);
 Moresby Parish Council and Parton Parish Council (joint response by 

letter dated 5th March 2015);
 Home Group (email dated 12th March 2015 received via the Police)
 The Waverley Hotel (email dated 13th March 2015);
 15 residents of Pears House (letter dated 16th March 2015);
 Business Against Crime Whitehaven (submission received 17th March 

2015);
 Shakers (email dated 19th March 2015);
 Department of Emergency Medicine, West Cumberland Hospital (letter 

dated 18th March 2015);
 Environmental Health, Copeland Borough Council (letter dated 18th 

March 2015);
 North West Ambulance Service (email dated 20th March 2015 received 

via the Police); 
 Paul Jones Tavern (letter dated 20th March 2015); and
 Brackenthwaite House, Senhouse Street, Whitehaven (letter dated 19th 

March, received 23rd March 2015).

2.2 With the exception of the responses received from the Copeland Disability 
Forum and the Moresby and Parton Parish Councils and partially from 
Environmental Health, Copeland Borough Council, all responses relate to the 
cumulative impact policy proposal. 

3. CONSULTATION RESPONSES NOT RELATING TO THE CUMULATIVE IMPACT 
POLICY

3.1 The Licensing Committee at the meeting on the 27th March 2015 considered and 
agreed with the responses noted in paragraph 2.2 above. In more detail these 
were as follows:

3.1.1 Copeland Disability Forum

The Forum stated that many licensed premises contravene the Equality Act 2010 
for being inaccessible to people with disabilities either by allowing their premises 
to be inaccessible or failing to make reasonable changes to make them 
accessible.

Officer comments:

The statement must concentrate on promoting the four licensing objectives. The 
Equality Act 2010 is not a licensing objective although it could be argued that if a 
disabled customer struggles to access premises that there is a health and safety 
issue if he cannot leave premises quickly in the event of an emergency. It is 

Page 9



recommended that a new paragraph 3.20 is inserted into that part of the policy 
which deals with public safety and which could read:

“Applicants are reminded that some customers may find accessing premises 
difficult due to disability and if they do struggle accessing premises may find it 
even more difficult to leave premises in the event of an emergency on the 
premises. Applicants should therefore be cognisant of the Equality Act 2010 and 
endeavour to make their premises available to all regardless of disability and 
make appropriate reasonable adjustments to ensure such availability”.

3.1.2 Moresby and Parton Parish Councils

These two Councils recommend that it should be a requirement that parish and 
town councils receive a copy of any application and that this Council’s licensing 
committee are made aware of any representations that the parish or town 
councils wish to make.

Officer comments:

There are two issues here. The first is requiring an applicant to serve an 
application on the parish or town council; the second is being able to take into 
account any representations received.

Dealing with the first point parish nor town councils are responsible authorities 
under the Licensing Act 2003 meaning that statute does not require applicants to 
serve applications on them. Further the statutory requirement in respect of 
temporary event notices is to serve just the police and environmental health.

Dealing with the second point parish and town councils are interested parties 
under the Licensing Act 2003. As such the Council can take into account any 
representations received from them in considering an application where 
interested parties can comment. There might be an issue in terms of timing as 
most parish councils meet monthly and whether they are able to submit a 
representation within the relevant statutory consultation times for an 
application will depend on when an application is received and the timing of the 
meeting. 

The request by the two Councils is a good one and it is recommended that an 
additional paragraph 4.22 is written into the policy as follows:

“4.22 Applications must be served on responsible authorities as required by  
the Licensing Act 2003. Where appropriate, a notice on site and a notice 
in a newspaper must also be made in accordance with the Act. 

Page 10



Additionally the Council recognises that parish and town councils can and 
do play a key role in representing local persons who live in the vicinity of 
application premises. As a matter of policy the Council expects applicants 
to notify the parish or town council for the area in which the application 
premises are located of any application being made. The Council will take 
into account any representations made by such councils, as interested 
parties under the Act, when it determines the application.”

3.1.3 Environmental Health, Copeland Borough Council

This suggests an addition to section 8.10 of the draft statement which is a list of 
matters which would be viewed as particularly serious in dealing with a review 
application or enforcement matters. The writer recommends that breaches of 
health and safety, food and fire legislation are also taken into account. They also 
ask that two additional documents are added to Appendix 1 (further reading and 
useful information).

Officer comments:

The two suggested documents can be added to Appendix 1. 

With regard to the inclusion of health and safety, food and fire legislation these 
would support the public safety licensing objective. If members are minded the 
words ‘or offences relating to breaches of health and safety, food or fire 
legislation’ could be added to the fourth bullet point in 8.10. 

3.2 The Licensing Committee agreed with the above responses and endorsed the 
officer’s amendments. This Committee is asked to endorse that decision. 

4 CUMULATIVE IMPACT POLICY

4.1 Appendix 3 sets out the proposed cumulative impact policy which was the 
subject of consultation. It includes a map showing edged blue the area which will 
fall within the cumulative impact area. Within that area are areas shaded red, 
amber and green. The red area is where a high level of crime and disorder is 
experienced and new applications for and variations to licences would only be 
granted in the most exceptional circumstances. Applications for premises in the 
amber area would be permitted provided that the proposed operating schedule 
includes various steps for promoting the licensing objectives. Good quality 
applications within the green area are likely to be permitted. The boundaries 
between the red, amber and green areas would be reviewed annually by the 
Licensing Committee. Circumstances, not least, prevailing crime rates and 
regeneration aspirations, may change over the five year period, and require 
adjustment of the inner boundaries.

Page 11



4.2 To say the least, the cumulative impact policy was controversial. Some local 
residents, particularly those living in Pears House and Brackenthwaite House, 
together with the Ambulance Service and the West Cumberland Hospital’s 
Department of Emergency Medicine were in favour of the policy and supported 
the Police.  Local publicans represented by the Business Against Crime 
Whitehaven Partnership (‘the Partnership’) were against the proposal. 

4.3 A summary of each of the responses is set out below:

4.3.1 Roc Bar:

The writer draws a comparison to Workington where that town will ‘carry 
on flourishing with their late hours and Whitehaven will carry on the 
downward slide’. He questions why the police have a different attitude to 
policing in Whitehaven possibly because their base is in Workington. He 
questions the evidence relied upon by the police and seeks to challenge 
the differences, if any, between the levels of crime and disorder between 
Whitehaven and Workington.

In his second letter the writer explains the pressures placed on licensed 
premises and predicts that other businesses will follow Captain Sennys in 
closing with the consequential decline in rates revenue and employment 
levels. He again challenges the evidence put forward by police and 
recommends that the Council asks the police for a comparison in crime 
rates between Workington and Whitehaven. 

He questions why there has not been a more constructive dialogue 
between the Council/police and licensees. 

4.3.2 Home Group

Briefly outlines complaints received from its tenants in respect of Town 
Centre anti-social activities.

4.3.3 The Waverley Hotel

This establishment fully supports the introduction of a cumulative impact 
policy stating that their premises have suffered for a number of years due 
to the close location of Captain Senny’s nightclub. They conclude by 
stating that the Council is doing its utmost ‘to encourage tourists to our 
lovely Georgian town and the harbour area is a valuable asset to the 
town, we do not want to encourage any more litter, noise or anti-social 

Page 12



behaviour than we are already experiencing on the harbour side in the 
early hours of the morning’.

4.3.4 Residents of Pears House (15 residents signing the letter)

Again this supports the proposed cumulative impact policy identifying it 
as a first step in developing an overview of the town centre night trade 
highlighting that there are emerging developments around the harbour 
front and that departments should work together to ‘produce an 
environment in which all are happy’. It emphasises a desire to ‘ensure 
that all the various aspects of life on the water front can co-exist’. They 
states that the ‘late night mayhem has already reached unacceptable and 
unmanageable proportions [and] ... that adopting a [cumulative impact 
policy] would be a positive step forward in creating a pleasant 
environment suitable for the continuing growth of other Harbour side 
enterprises and developments’.

4.3.5 Business Against Crime Whitehaven

This is a substantial response, running (with appendices) to 107 pages. It 
is an objection to the cumulative impact policy and early morning 
restriction orders. It states that the statistics offered by the police are 
exaggerated and cannot solely be attributable to the night time 
businesses in Whitehaven Town Centre. It highlights a need to work 
together to find a solution, mechanisms and options for addressing any 
problems which may exist prior to implementing a cumulative impact 
policy. They ask for any decision to be delayed for a period of 12 months 
where such other options can be explored. They list suggested 
options on page 9 and explore them in detail on pages 23-29 of their 
submission. 

In respect of crime rates they emphasise that Cumbria as a whole has the 
lowest UK crime rate; that if broken down red zone streets show an 
average of 3-6 offences per week which is not a ‘viable cause or reason’ 
to impose either type of policy.  They dispute that there has been a 
dramatic increase in crime and disorder in the Town Centre over the last 
2 years adding that insufficient evidence has been put forward. They 
suggest that members should observe the night time economy for 
themselves to assess the real extent of what is going on. They state that 
‘the statistics that have been presented are unfair and that 
Whitehaven as Copeland’s ‘Principle Town’ is being unfairly discriminated 
against due to dwindling police numbers and confusing non-related or 
viable statistics’. They mention that ‘recent research into high crime 

Page 13



statistics is because the constabulary has become more robust in its 
recording processes’. 

They comment that the cumulative impact policy might cause a large 
capacity club to open outside the policy area and question what effect 
this would have the public resources, particularly the NHS. 

The Partnership states that they represent approximately 100 businesses.

4.3.6 Shakers

Strongly opposes the proposed cumulative impact policy stressing that 
‘Whitehaven does not have a violent or troublesome nightlife compared 
to other towns and cities and we should be proud of this rather than 
punish the people of Whitehaven by restricting future opportunities to 
frequent new premises’. The response is critical of the police in failing to 
work with the local pub watch scheme for over 18 months and the 
manner in which statistics have been obtained and compiled. It 
comments that the proposal is ‘contradictory, incomplete, offers no 
options, does not consider any consequences and makes a 
recommendation which is not allowable under the [Act/Guidance]’. The 
writer fears the policy would drive away customers to neighbouring 
towns. 

4.3.7 West Cumberland Hospital – Department of Emergency Medicine/ 
Accident and Emergency 

Mr Hayton, a consultant within this Department, comments that high 
rates of alcohol related injury are dealt with at the Hospital between 
11pm and 3am Thursday to Sunday and during the daytime on Friday to 
Sunday as people are probably attending hospital with injuries sustained 
the previous night. He comments on the pressures being placed on the 
Hospital welcoming ‘any intervention that would minimise alcohol 
related injury at these very busy times’.

4.3.8 Environmental Health, Copeland Borough Council

Outlines the number of pubs and takeaways within the respective zones 
stating that ‘there is significantly more number of complaints of noise, 
odour and litter in the red defined area than there are in the amber and 
green defined areas’ adding that complaints of general street noise and 
litter cannot be attributed to one premises commenting that ‘therefore 
introducing a policy to address the cumulative impact is to be 
welcomed’. The writer states that cleansing operatives frequently clean 

Page 14



up glass, vomit, takeaway packaging and foodstuffs adding that 
litterbins are overflowing which attract seagulls and vermin.

4.3.9 North West Ambulance NHS Trust

Provides details of the number of ambulances and rapid response 
vehicles available while the night time economy is at its most active. This 
response states that the Service is ‘extremely busy at the weekends due 
to this being the time that most people socialise’ with them often 
receiving calls to ‘attend inappropriate incidents involving alcohol and 
disorder. Our crews are often delayed at these incidents for prolonged 
periods of time when often there is no clinical need for the person to 
receive treatment or  to attend hospital, this effectively removes a 
frontline paramedic vehicle from responding to another incoming 999 call 
whilst they deal with the incident’.

4.3.10 Paul Jones Tavern

Strongly opposes the introduction of the policy.  Comments that ‘we 
should not be thinking about punishing the people of Whitehaven by 
restricting future opportunities/events in licensed premises’. It states 
that licensed premises are being victimised due to understaffing of the 
police force. ‘By restricting opening hours this will drive away customers 
to neighbouring towns and leave Whitehaven with many more 
businesses struggling to survive’. Complains about lack of contact by the 
Police. 

4.3.11 Brackenthwaite House, Senhouse Street, Whitehaven

Supports Police application. Regards the proposed policy ‘as a sensible 
and fair approach to the future planning and management of the overall 
business operating in the town centre late at night’. Comments that ‘at 
times our frail and elderly residents have felt that they are living at the 
heart of night time war zone (a resident’s own comments) and this is 
unacceptably distressing for people well into their nineties’. States that 
the hub of a health community is one where each facet recognises and 
respects the needs and rights of the other across the 24 hour day.

4.4 As stated in recommendation (a) above the Police have now withdrawn their 
request for a cumulative impact policy. Steps are being taken to re-establish the 
local pub watch group and the Police are willing to work with the Partnership 
and that group to improve methods of working with a view to reducing crime 
and disorder. However the Police have stated that it may request the Council to 
review the position next year and again consider introducing a cumulative 

Page 15



impact policy if a reduction in crime and disorder is not achieved. If the 
Committee was minded to agree to the request then it will, at that time, 
constitute a revision of the Policy and would require full consultation again.

4.5 The Police in withdrawing their request state that they wish “to give the 
Pubwatch and the local authority the opportunity to work together with the 
local police to progress the licensing issues”. The Partnership have asked for 
other alternatives solutions to be considered first and have requested the 
Council to become involved in exploring and progressing those alternatives. The 
Partnership wishes to addresses the Licensing Committee meeting on the 24th 
September on this point. The Police have also been invited.

4.6 The Licensing Committee could, on its own volition, still adopt policies relating to 
cumulative impact and early morning restriction orders if it so wished. However 
such policies are usually police led. Unless members feel that there is an urgent 
need to adopt such policies, which cannot wait for alternative options to be 
explored or pub watch re-established, it is recommended that those policies are 
not proceeded with at this time.

5 RECOMMENDATIONS

5.1 That the Cumbria Constabulary’s position withdrawing their request for the 
inclusion of a cumulative impact policy in the proposed Statement of Licensing 
Policy 2016-2021 be noted.

5.2 That the policies on cumulative impact and early morning restriction orders are 
not included in the proposed Statement of Licensing Policy 2016-2021.

5.3 That the proposed amendments set out in paragraphs 3.1.1, 3.1.2 and 3.1.3 of 
the report are agreed and that the draft Statement of Licensing Policy 2016-
2021, as set out in Appendix D to the report and prepared under section 5 of the 
Licensing Act 2003, is approved and recommended to Council for approval.

5.4 That members consider how they wish to proceed with the matters raised by the 
Cumbria Constabulary and the Business Against Crime Whitehaven Partnership 
relating to crime and disorder in Whitehaven Town Centre. Members may wish 
to consider establishing a Task Group, comprising of say three members and two 
representatives from each of the Police and the Partnership/Pub watch to 
consider the crime and disorder statistics, the impact on the public services, to 
explore options or solutions, and report back. That Task Group could invite 
others to attend as appropriate. For example from the NHS or from 
Brackenthwaite House. It is important to note that any discussions will not be 
about whether a cumulative impact policy should be adopted. That is a matter 
for any subsequent review of the Policy in years to come. These discussions 

Page 16



should be restricted to problems being experienced on the streets now and 
options, other than a cumulative impact policy, for resolving such policy.

6. STATUTORY OFFICER COMMENTS

6.1 Monitoring Officer Comments:  As set out in this report.

6.2 S151 Officer Comment:  No financial issues arise from the report.

6.3 EIA Comment: 

The policy is designed to promote the four licensing objectives as set out in the 
policy. As such the beneficiaries of the policy are very broad across the 
communities that live, work and visit the Borough. The policy seeks to reinforce 
and develop measures to improve the safety of the public and minimise the risk 
of crimes against them, to militate the effects of regulated activities upon the 
communities in which the activities are held and to protect children from 
inappropriate activities. Children are accorded a special status in view of the 
licensing objective to protect children from harm. The policy also seeks to 
provide useful information to those who provide, or wish to provide, regulated 
activities and thereby assist them in understanding the policies we apply and to 
understand that each application will be treated equitably having regard to the 
Policy. There is no intention and no foreseeable impact of the policy to mean 
that disabled people or people with other protected characteristics as specified 
by the Equality Act 2010 would be treated more adversely as a consequence of 
the proposals in the policy. 

                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                    
6.4 Policy Framework Comment: Relevant policies are referred to in section 2 of the 

draft statement.

Appendices:

Appendix 1: Responses to consultation;

Appendix 2: Additional evidence submitted by the Police;

Appendix 3: Sections 6 and 7 of the draft policy relating to cumulative impact 
and early morning restriction orders; and

Appendix 4: Revised statement of licensing policy.

Page 17



List of Background Documents:  

None, other than as contained in Appendices 1-4 above and previous draft statement 
issued for consultation.

Consultees:  

As set out in the report.

Page 18



Page 19



Page 20



Page 21



Page 22



Page 23



Page 24



Page 25



Page 26



Page 27



Page 28



Page 29



Page 30



Page 31



Page 32



Page 33



Page 34



Page 35



Page 36



Page 37



Page 38



Page 39



Page 40



Page 41



Page 42



Page 43



Page 44



Page 45



Page 46



Page 47



Page 48



Page 49



Page 50



Page 51



Page 52



Page 53



Page 54



Page 55



Page 56



Page 57



Page 58



Page 59



Page 60



Page 61



Page 62



Page 63



Page 64



Page 65



Page 66



Page 67



Page 68



Page 69



Page 70



Page 71



Page 72



Page 73



Page 74



Page 75



Page 76



Page 77



Page 78



Page 79



Page 80



Page 81



Page 82



Page 83



Page 84



Page 85



Page 86



Page 87



Page 88



Page 89



Page 90



Page 91



Page 92



Page 93



Page 94



Page 95



Page 96



Page 97



Page 98



Page 99



Page 100



Page 101



Page 102



Page 103



Page 104



Page 105



Page 106



Page 107



Page 108



Page 109



Page 110



Page 111



Page 112



Page 113



Page 114



Page 115



Page 116



Page 117



Page 118



Page 119



Page 120



Page 121



Page 122



Page 123



Page 124



Page 125



Page 126



Page 127



Page 128



Page 129



Page 130



Page 131



Page 132



Page 133



Page 134



Page 135



Page 136



Page 137



Page 138



Page 139



Page 140



Page 141



Page 142



Page 143



Page 144



Page 145



Page 146



Page 147



Page 148



Page 149



Page 150



Page 151



Page 152



Page 153



Page 154



Page 155



Page 156



Page 157



Page 158



Page 159



Page 160



Page 161



Page 162



Page 163



Page 164



Page 165



Page 166



Page 167



Page 168



Page 169



Page 170



Page 171



Page 172



Page 173



Page 174



Page 175



Page 176



Page 177



Page 178



Page 179



Page 180



Page 181



Page 182



Page 183



Page 184



Page 185



Page 186



Page 187



Page 188



Page 189



Page 190



Page 191



Page 192



Page 193



Page 194



Page 195



Page 196



Page 197



Page 198



Page 199



Page 200



Page 201



Page 202



Page 203



Page 204



Page 205



Page 206



Page 207



Page 208



Page 209



Page 210



Page 211



Page 212



Page 213



Page 214



Page 215



Page 216



Page 217



Page 218



Page 219



Page 220



Page 221



Page 222



Page 223



Page 224



Page 225



Page 226



Page 227



Page 228



Page 229



Page 230



Page 231



Page 232



Page 233



Page 234



Page 235



Page 236



Page 237



Page 238



Page 239



Page 240



Page 241



Page 242



Page 243



Page 244



Page 245



Page 246



Page 247



Page 248



Page 249



Page 250



Page 251



Page 252



Page 253



Page 254



Page 255



Page 256



Page 257



Page 258



Page 259



Page 260



Page 261



Page 262



Page 263



Page 264



Page 265



Page 266



Page 267



Page 268



Page 269



Page 270



Page 271



Page 272



Page 273



Page 274



Page 275



Page 276



Page 277



Page 278



LC 24 Sept 2015
Item 7   

THE DEREGULATION ACT 2015 – CHANGES TO THE LENGTH OF 
HACKNEY CARRIAGE AND PRIVATE HIRE DRIVER LICENCES AND 
PRIVATE HIRE OPERATOR LICENCES 

EXECUTIVE MEMBER: Councillors D Moore (Legal) and D Banks (Community 
Safety and Enforcement)

LEAD OFFICER: C A Boyce, Legal Services Manager 
REPORT AUTHOR: M Jewell, Senior Legal Services Officer 

Recommendations:

(a)   That the Legal Services Manager is delegated authority to grant and renew 
hackney carriage and private hire driver licences for less than 3 years where the 
circumstances of the case dictate except where matters (for example, serious 
convictions) are already reserved to the Taxi and General Licensing Panel;

(b)   that the proposed fees shown in paragraphs 2.4 and 3.3 of the report are 
approved as being effective from the 1st October 2015 for licences granted or 
renewed after that date; 

(c)   that the Legal Services Manager is delegated authority to grant and renew 
private hire operator licences for less than 5 years where the circumstances of 
the case dictate except where matters are already reserved to the Taxi and 
General Licensing Panel; and

(d)   that where a 3 year driver’s licence is issued that the driver be required to 
complete a certificate, midway through the licence period, that no convictions or 
cautions have been received during the first half of the licence period.

1. Introduction

1.1 The Deregulation Act 2015 received Royal Assent on 26th March 2015 
with an implementation date of 1st October 2015 for the hackney carriage 
and private hire licensing elements. The Act contains many changes to 
various regulatory functions including three provisions that will affect taxi 
and private hire licensing.  

1.2 The first provision is that a hackney carriage and private hire driver’s 
licence must be issued for a period of three years unless there are 
reasons for not doing so. 

Page 279

Agenda Item 7



1.3 The second provision is that a private hire operator’s licence must be 
issued for a period of five years unless there are reasons for not doing so. 

1.4 The third provision permits private hire operators to sub-contract journeys 
to other private hire operators outside Copeland’s area. At present private 
hire operators are only permitted to sub-contact journeys to other private 
hire operators who are licensed in Copeland’s area. 

1.5 Currently the Council issues hackney carriage and private hire drivers’ 
licences for one year and private hire operators’ licences for three years. 

2. Hackney carriage and private hire driver licences 

2.1 The Council currently issues hackney carriage and private hire driver 
licences for one year at a fee of £70.00.  Section 10 of the Deregulation 
Act 2015 amends section 53 of the Local Government (Miscellaneous 
Provisions) Act 1976 to read that these licences “shall remain in force for 
three years or for such lesser period specified in the licence as the district 
council think appropriate in the circumstances of the case”. 

2.2 The words ‘in the circumstances of the case’ are not defined. However the 
thrust of the 2015 Act is to deregulate matters and save business money. 
The weight of opinion is that ‘the circumstances of the case’ might include 
impending retirement, where a DoT driver’s licence is restricted to a 
specified period on medical grounds, where convictions dictate a 
probationary period should be had and possibly where an applicant cannot 
afford a three year licence. Also in the early years a driver may wish to 
synchronise his driver’s renewal with his medical and criminal disclosure 
checks. A driver may therefore require a shorter licence in the interim 
period. Case law or guidance may develop over coming years.  It is 
recommended that the Legal Services Manager is delegated authority to 
grant licences for less than 3 years where the circumstances of the case 
dictate except where matters (like for serious convictions) are already 
reserved to the Taxi and General Licensing Panel. Such matters will 
continue to be dealt with by that Panel.

2.3 The other issue that comes from this change in the law is how frequently 
checks should be made on drivers in the area of convictions. Hackney 
carriage and private hire drivers are on the DBS “notifiable occupations” 
scheme. This means that if a licensed driver is arrested, charged or 
convicted of an offence the Police will notify the Council if it considers a 
disclosure to be in the public interest. In addition all licensed drivers are 
required, by the Council to undertake a DBS disclosure every three years. 
It is possible that the Council will not become aware of some convictions. 
It is therefore recommended that drivers granted a three year licence 

Page 280



complete and submit a self-declaration relating to convictions mid-way 
through the licence.

2.4 The proposed fees for driver licences for the three year period (with 
allowance being made for those licences granted for a lesser period of 
three years because of the circumstances of the case) are:

Grant or renewal of a driver’s licence for up to 3 years: £150
Grant or renewal of a driver’s licence for up to 2 years: £115
Grant or renewal of driver’s licence for up to 1 year: £80

Calculations have shown that the initial cost of processing an application 
for a driver’s licence is £80 which together with the cost of the yearly 
administration of three year licences, namely checking the drivers DVLA 
licence and obtaining a self certification from each driver that he has no 
convictions takes the fee for a three yearly licence to £150.00. 

2.5 This means that the current annual fee of £70.00 paid for three years 
would amount to £210 whereas the proposed three yearly fee is £150.00 – 
an overall saving of £60.00. 

2.6 It is recommended that the proposed fees shown in paragraph 2.4 above 
are approved as being effective from the 1st October 2015 for licences 
granted or renewed after that date.

3 Private Hire Operators Licences

3.1 The Council currently issues private hire operator’s licences for a period of 
three years at a fee of £180. The Deregulation Act 2015 amends section 
55 of the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976 so that 
as from 1st October 2015 these licences “shall remain in force for five 
years or such lesser period, specified in the licence as the district council 
think appropriate in the circumstances of the case”. Again the 
‘circumstances of the case’ are not defined. Few issues arise with 
operators and it is unlikely that a shorter licence will be required to be 
issued. Nevertheless it is recommended that the Legal Services Manager 
is delegated authority to issue licences for a shorter period if such 
circumstances dictate.

3.2 There are currently 33 private hire operators licensed by the Council. 

3.3 Calculations have shown that because of the amount of work involved in 
processing and administrating private hire operators licences the fee of 
£180.00 should not be increased. It is therefore proposed that the fee for 
the five yearly licences be £180.00.

Page 281



4 Income

It is likely that there will be a reduction in income due to these changes. 
They are however statutory and the Council does not have any choice in 
the matter. It is expected however that the reduced income will simply 
bring the actual income for the overall licensing function more in line with 
the budgeted income.

5 Recommendations 

As set out in paragraphs 2.2, 2.3, 2.6, 3.1 and 3.3 of the report which have 
been underlined.

List of Appendices

None. 

List of Background Documents:

None.

Page 282


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the meetings held on 27 March and 7 September 2015
	Item 3 - minutes of the meeting held on 07 09 15

	6 Review of statement of licensing policy 2016 - 2021
	Item 6 - appendices 1 to 3
	Item 6 - appendix 4

	7 The Deregulation Act 2015 - changes to the length of hackney carriage driver licences and private hire operators licences

